
 

  The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 
AGENDA  

 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  
 

REGULAR MEETING 
May 3, 2023 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 
 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Public Comment (3 minutes/speaker). 
 

3.  Recognition of Starla Loureiro and Michelle Martinez for 5 years of service.  
 

4.  Approve minutes from the April 12, 2023 meeting. (Action Item) 

5.  Approve the following routine items: (Action Item) 
a. Certifications of membership. 
b. Service and disability allowances. 
c. Death benefits. 
d. Investment liquidity report. 

 
6.  Accept the following routine items: (Action Item) 

a. Disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 
b. Investment asset allocation report. 

 
7.  Pension administration system project update. 

8.  Consider and take possible action to adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2023-2 
amending Section 6 regarding Management Administrative Leave.  (Action Item) 

9.  Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to renew a maintenance and 
support agreement with CPAS. (Action Item) 
 



   
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

10.  Miscellaneous 
a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 
 



RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 
April 12, 2023 

9:00 a.m. 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 

BOARD MEMBER CANDACE ANDERSEN PARTICIPATED IN THE BOARD MEETING VIA 
TELECONFERENCE AT THE LOCATION LISTED BELOW. 

TELECONFERENCE LOCATION: 
1516 KAMOLE STREET 
HONOLULU, HI  96821 

Present: Candace Andersen, Dennis Chebotarev, Donald Finley, Scott Gordon, Jerry 
Holcombe, Jay Kwon, John Phillips, Mike Sloan, Russell Watts, and Samson Wong 

Absent: Louie Kroll and David MacDonald 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer; Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; 
Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Son Lu, Information Technology 
Manager; Henry Gudino, Accounting Manager; Jasmine Lee, Member Services 
Manager; Erica Grant, Human Resources Manager; Erika McIntosh, 
Administrative Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 
Vivian Shultz  Law Offices of Vivian Shultz 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

3. Recognition of Jimmy Lambert for 10 years of service

Gordan congratulated Jimmy Lambert for 10 years of service.

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#4



Page 2 

April 12, 2023 
 

 

4. Approval of minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the March 8, 2023, meeting. (Yes: Andersen, 
Chebotarev, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Phillips, Sloan, Watts, and Wong). 
 

5. Approval of Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the April 12, 2023, meeting. (Yes: Andersen, 
Chebotarev, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Phillips, Sloan, Watts, and Wong). 

 
6. Acceptance of Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to accept the routine items of the April 12, 2023, meeting. (Yes: Andersen, 
Chebotarev, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Phillips, Sloan, Watts, and Wong). 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board moved into Closed Session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to consider 
recommendations from the medical advisor and/or staff regarding the following disability 
retirement applications: 
 
The Board moved into open session. 
 

7. Disability Retirement Applications: 
 

a. Isaac Cortes – Service Connected: It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s 
recommendation and grant the disability benefits. (Yes: Andersen, Chebotarev, Finley, 
Gordon, Holcombe, Phillips, Sloan, Watts, and Wong). 

b. Michael Ellis – Service Connected: It was M/S/C to return the matter to staff and the 
medical advisor for further information. (Yes: Andersen, Chebotarev, Gordon, 
Holcombe, Phillips, Sloan, Watts, and Wong). 

c. Jeffrey Hagstrom – Service Connected: It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s 
recommendation and grant the disability benefits (Yes: Andersen, Chebotarev, Finley, 
Gordon, Holcombe, Phillips, Sloan, Watts, and Wong). 

 
8. Consider and take possible action regarding non-service connected disability retirement 

allowance of deceased member Beth Kilian 

It was M/S/C to approve the non-service connected disability retirement allowance of Beth 
Kilian. (Yes: Anderson, Chebotarev, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Phillips, Sloan, Watts, and 
Wong). 
  

9. Presentation of semi-annual disability retirement report 

Dunn presented the semi-annual disability retirement report. 

 



Page 3 

April 12, 2023 
 

 

10. Review of the Policy Regarding Assessment and Determination of Compensation 
Enhancement 

Levy presented the Policy Regarding Assessment and Determination of Compensation 
Enhancements. 

 

11. Consider and take possible action on SACRS Board of Directors Election 

It was M/S/C to accept the nominating committee ballot and direct our voting member to 
vote as such.  (Yes: Anderson, Chebotarev, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Phillips, Sloan, Watts, 
and Wong). 

 
12. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board 

a. There was no action taken on this item.  2023 Blackstone Global LP Conference, May 22-
24, Boca Raton, FL. 

b. There was no action taken on this item. 2023 Blackstone Private Equity Strategies 
(Secondary Real Estate) LP Conference, May 24-25, 2023, Boca Raton, FL. 

 
13. Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report – None 

b. Outside Professionals’ Report – None 

c. Trustees’ Comments – None 

 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Andersen, Chebotarev, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, 
Phillips, Sloan, Watts, and Wong) 
 
 
 
 
             
Scott W. Gordon, Chairman     Jerry R. Holcombe, Secretary 
 
 



Acosta Mendoza, Martha 93074 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Aguilar Damian, Andrea 91774 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Alfonso, Jamie Lyn 93054 III 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Beverly-Sivil, Laynee 92997 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Bollinger, Ashlee 91460 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Bowers, Crystal D9500 P5.3 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Superior Courts

Brown, Derrick 92613 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Burns, Connor 88266 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Buscemi, Claudia 93057 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Calara, Danielle 93038 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Caley, Charles 93080 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Cardona, Ruben 92745 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Chaffin, Daniel 89714 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Chan, Justin 93104 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Chtaini, Jamal 90659 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Collyer, Daniel 93066 S/D 03/01/23 Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District

Condon, Riley 92614 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Corbin, Yvonne 93121 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

deGive, Ryan 93156 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Doliber, Hunter 92615 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Dominguez, Oscar 77351 III 03/01/23 Contra Costa County 

Dossa, Benjamin 92616 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Earls, Mechan 93106 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Edmond, Ariel 93091 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Ferre, Jennifer 93035 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Gatan, Darryl 92912 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Glasper, Phanteyjah 93096 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Grayson, Joseph 87467 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Grima, Justin 90798 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Guerra, Tina 92523 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Gutekunst, Elliott 92617 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Guzman, Alysha 93119 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Hanna, Anthony 88393 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Harris, Bryan 93111 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Henderson, Julie 93084 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS 

Employee 

NumberName Employer 

Membership 

Date Tier

Page 1

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#5a.



CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS 

Employee 

NumberName Employer 

Membership 

Date Tier

Hernandez, Lyneth 83154 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Horvei, Martha 93083 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Hurtado, David 89721 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Jalili, Daara 92618 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Jenkins, Wade 89722 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Jernigan, Peter 89411 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Jose, Robustiano 84704 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Kangas, Sarah D9990 P4.3 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Housing Authority

Kattengell, Karla 91672 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Khaira, Sarbjit 93019 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County 

Kohen, Dani 92620 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Lanza, Alejandro D3406 P4.3 03/01/23 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Li, Bensheng 93088 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County 

Lin, Justin 93041 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County 

Lucas, Shannon 91932 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Luna Beltran, Alis 93149 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Machado, Mario 92621 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Madrigal, Martin 93094 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Makeev, Francheska 90741 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Mayer, Cody 90657 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Messer, Kevin 89730 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Messick, Brian 93081 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Miller, Jackie 93079 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Miller, Keyerah 93098 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Miranda, Linda 93046 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Moran, Bianca 93021 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Moreira, Gilma 93056 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Moreno Gonzalez, Cynthia 93133 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Navarro, Berenice 93100 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Navarro-Diaz, Elena 93089 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Newbury, Ryan 92622 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Nguyen, Thao Nguyen 93040 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Parry, Tanner 92623 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Perez, Daniela 93116 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Page 2



CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS 

Employee 

NumberName Employer 

Membership 

Date Tier

Porter, Ryan 92624 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Powell, Matthew 92625 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Pulido, Joanna 93008 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Quintero, Raul 93097 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Ramirez, Alma 75049 III 03/01/23 Contra Costa County 

Redmond, Ryan 90660 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Reyes, Ronald 93153 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Riessen, Brett 90759 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Robbins, Kelly 93105 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Rodriguez, Kimberly 92701 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Rose, Joshua 92628 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Ruano, Alexis 93115 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Ryder, Branden 92629 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Sanchez Rivera, Alexandra 93109 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Schneider, Christian 92630 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Silva, Ryan 90658 S/E 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Singsomphong, Nelson 93085 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Soffel, John 89648 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County 

Souza, Magda 93113 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Stevenson, Robert 93095 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Valdez, Madelyn 93099 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

VanWinkle, Gary 93072 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Yancey, Tanya 93082 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Yoon, Sanghyuk D9500 P5.3 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Superior Courts

Young, Shannon 91087 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County

Page 3



Cotter, Richard D7274 S/D 4.3 02/01/23 Morage-Orinda Fire District Tier Correction

Figueroa-Quintero, Joel 91999 PE.2 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Demotion from Deputy Sheriff to Sheriff Ranger

Woffinden, Jon 91359 PE.2 P5.2 03/01/23 Contra Costa County Position Change Leading to Tier Change

Employee 

NumberName

TIER CHANGES

Reason for ChangeEmployer 

Effective     

Date 

New 

Tier

Old 

Tier

Page 4



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

BOARD OF RETIREMENT

Service and Disability Retirement Allowances:

Effective Option

Name Number Date Type Tier Selected

Altuna, Jesus 49193 1/31/23 SR II and III Unmodified

Balao, Daryle D7274 01/02/23 SR Safety A Unmodified

Boutte, Debora 83910 01/17/23 SR Pepra 5.2 Unmodified

Calloway, Loretta 79693 11/05/22 SR Pepra 5.2 Unmodified

Casey, Susan D7274 12/31/22 SR I Unmodified

Castaneda, Carmen 47682 01/06/23 SR II and III Unmodified

Chmiel, Denise 72364 01/04/23 SR III Unmodified

Clark, Alexandra 69050 12/31/22 SR Safety A Unmodified

Connor, Helen 78048 01/31/23 SR III Unmodified

Cooper, Deborah 46433 01/03/23 SR III Unmodified

Curtis, Daniel D7830 01/01/23 SR Safety A Unmodified

Daria, Mayette 63453 11/07/22 SR II and III Unmodified

Fisher, Cathleen 44238 12/24/22 SR II and III Unmodified

Harder, James D7830 01/01/23 SR Safety A Option 2

Ho, Lisa 88501 01/23/23 SR III Option 2

Hodge, Cathleen 69874 01/07/23 SR III Unmodified

Johnson, James 68545 11/01/21 NSCD III Unmodified

Jones, Elizabeth 72614 01/04/23 SR III Unmodified

Kramer, Gus 26849 01/03/23 SR I Unmodified

Lefrancois, Odessa 68352 01/13/23 SR III Unmodified

Lucas, Chela 77307 01/05/23 SR III Unmodified

McDonald, Hugh D3406 12/31/22 SR I Unmodified

Minkkinen, Marlena 61588 01/01/23 SR II and III Unmodified

Moreno, Nester 61512 12/30/22 SR Safety A Unmodified

Neal, Marjorie 81328 01/01/23 SR Pepra 5.2 Option 2

Powers, Shawn 73697 01/01/23 SR III Unmodified

Ruiz, Ralph 78115 01/31/23 SR III Unmodified

Rushing, Evalyn 84459 01/01/23 SR Pepra 5.2 Unmodified

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#5b.



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

BOARD OF RETIREMENT

Shafer, Bryan D7830 01/28/23 SR Safety A Unmodified

Stewart, Kiriba 69629 01/17/23 SR Safety A Unmodified

Taylor, Denise 45889 12/30/22 SR II Option 2

White, Dana 62295 12/16/22 SR II and III Unmodified



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

BOARD OF RETIREMENT

Deaths:

Name Date of Death Employer as of Date of Death

Cauthen, Jerry 04/05/23 Contra Costa County

Cox, Antonette 03/05/23 Contra Costa County

Delumpa, Lilia 07/13/21 Contra Costa County

Flores, Richard 04/10/23 Contra Costa County

Freeman, Sally 03/16/23 Contra Costa County

Goldsworthy, Nancy 03/09/23 Contra Costa County

Hammett, Clarence 03/09/23 San Ramon Valley Fire District

King, Karen 11/25/22 Contra Costa County

Knight, Flora 12/13/22 Contra Costa County

Kountanis, Pete 03/02/23 Contra Costa County

Larson, Monica 01/17/23 Contra Costa County

Matthews, Carolyn 02/07/23 Contra Costa County

Mattka, Frederick 03/26/23 Contra Costa County

Mc Clain, Pauline 02/06/23 Contra Costa County

Mc Murry, Samuel 03/30/23 Contra Costa County

McCombs, Janet 04/12/23 Contra Costa County

McCowan, Dean 04/17/23 Contra Costa County

Morris, Juanita 03/18/23 Superior Courts

Pahner, Marietta 03/20/23 Contra Costa County

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#5c.



 
 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Liquidity Report – March 2023 

 

March 2023 Performance 

  Cash Flow Coverage Ratio 

Benefit Cash Flow Projected by Model $49,250,000    

Liquidity Sub-Portfolio Cash Flow $49,250,000  100% 

Actual Benefits Paid $48,088,134  102.4% 

Next Month’s Projected Benefit Payment $49,500,000    

 

Monthly Manager Positioning – March 2023 

  

 Beginning  
Market Value  

Liquidity 
Program 

Cash Flow 

Market Value 
Change/Other 

Activity 

Ending 
Market Value 

DFA $323,639,441  ($10,750,000) $2,652,396  $315,541,836  

Insight $525,632,467  ($18,250,000) $3,420,823  $510,803,290  

Sit $585,379,709  ($20,250,000) $8,279,199  $573,408,908  

Liquidity $1,434,651,616  ($49,250,000) $14,352,418  $1,399,754,034  

Cash $80,937,631  $1,161,866  ($8,025,835) $74,073,662  

Liquidity + Cash $1,515,589,248  ($48,088,134) $6,326,583  $1,473,827,696  

 

Functional Roles  

Manager Portfolio Characteristics Liquidity Contribution 
Sit High quality portfolio of small balance, 

government guaranteed mortgages with 
higher yields. 

Pays out net income on monthly basis.   

DFA High quality, short duration portfolio of 
liquid, low volatility characteristics. 

Pays out a pre-determined monthly amount.  DFA 
sources liquidity from across their portfolio. 

Insight Buy and maintain (limited trading) 
portfolio of high quality, short duration, 
primarily corporates. 

Completion portfolio makes a payment through net 
income and bond maturities that bridges the gap 
between other managers and projected payment. 

Cash STIF account at custodial bank. Buffer in the event of any Liquidity shortfall/excess. 

 
Notes 
 
The third cash flow for 2023 from the liquidity program was completed on March 23rd. The actuarial model cash flow 
was higher than actual experience, producing $1.2 million more than the actual benefits paid.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#5d.



 
 

2 
 

Cash Flow Structure 

The chart below shows the sources of cash flow for the next three years of CCCERA’s projected benefit payments.  

This table will change slightly as the model is tweaked and as the portfolios receive new rounds of funding each July 

as part of the Annual Funding Plan. 

 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

Dollar Contribution by Cashflow Period and Projected Liquidity Pool Size     
(Millions of Dollars)

DFA Contribution Sit Contribution Insight Contribution Liquidity Pool



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

BOARD OF RETIREMENT

Disability Retirement Applications: The Board's Hearing Officer is hereby authorized

to issue subpoenas in the following cases involving disability applications:

Name Number Filed Type

None

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#6a.



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of March 31, 2023

Market Percentage Current Target* Current Target Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Dimensional Fund Advisors 315,541,836 3.0% 4.0% -1.0%

Insight 510,803,290 4.9% 6.5% -1.6%

Sit 573,408,908 5.5% 6.5% -1.0%

Total Liquidity 1,399,754,034 13.5% 17.0% -3.5% 17.0% -3.5%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners 398,055,747 3.8% 4.0% -0.2%

BlackRock Index Fund 936,129,841 9.0% 9.0% 0.0%

Emerald Advisers 203,676,202 2.0% 1.5% 0.5%

Ceredex 200,771,432 1.9% 1.5% 0.4%

Total Domestic Equity 1,738,633,222 16.7% 16.0% 0.7% 13.0% 3.7%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (Columbia) 468,325,309 4.5% 4.0% 0.5%

William Blair 441,799,898 4.3% 4.0% 0.3%

First Eagle 521,884,520 5.0% 4.5% 0.5%

Artisan Global Opportunities 506,380,750 4.9% 4.5% 0.4%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 362,889,350 3.5% 3.5% -0.0%

TT Emerging Markets 324,603,091 3.1% 3.5% -0.4%

Total Global & International Equity 2,625,882,919 25.3% 24.0% 1.3% 19.0% 6.3%

Private Equity** 1,319,299,098 12.7% 13.0% -0.3% 18.0% -5.3%

Private Credit 1,044,463,841 10.1% 8.0% 2.1% 13.0% -2.9%

Real Estate - Value Add 248,603,052 2.4% 4.0% -1.6% 5.0% -2.6%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 364,506,826 3.5% 4.0% -0.5% 5.0% -1.5%

Real Estate - REIT 2.0% -0.1% 0.0% 1.9%

Adelante 86,415,978 0.8%

Invesco 107,857,392 1.0%

High Yield 145,473,183 1.4% 1.5% -0.1% 0.0% 1.4%

Risk Parity 3.0% 0.3% 3.0% 0.3%

AQR GRP EL 171,916,484 1.7%

PanAgora 166,864,534 1.6%

Total Other Growth Assets 3,655,400,389 35.2% 35.5% -0.3% 44.0% -8.8%

Total Growth Assets 8,019,916,529 77.2% 75.5% 1.7% 76.0% 1.2%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO 224,954,869 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 2.5% -0.3%

Acadian MAARS 251,661,064 2.4% 2.5% -0.1% 2.5% -0.1%

Sit LLCAR 302,336,928 2.9% 2.5% 0.4% 2.0% 0.9%

Total Risk Diversifying 778,952,862 7.5% 7.5% 0.0% 7.0% 0.5%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) 111,529,064 1.1% 1.1%

Cash 74,073,662 0.7% 0.7%

Total Cash and Overlay 185,602,726 1.8% 0.0% 1.8% 0.0% 1.8%

Total Fund 10,384,226,151         100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Current targets and ranges reflect asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on July 27, 2022 (BOR Resolution 2022-2).

**Private Equity long-term target includes Real Assets/Infrastructure (see Asset Allocation Mix 5 adopted December 9, 2020).

0% - 10%

Range

11-22%

Range

65-85%

Range

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#6b.



Private Market Investments

As of March 31, 2023

 

     

REAL ESTATE - Value Add Inception Target # of Discretion New Target Funding Market % of Outstanding

Date Termination Extension by GP/LP Termination Commitment Value Total Asset Commitment

Blackstone Strategic Partners Real Estate VIII 11/18/22 11/18/32 80,000,000 0 0.00% 80,000,000 

Invesco IREF IV 12/01/14 12/01/21 35,000,000 976,002 0.01% 4,453,599 

Invesco IREF V 09/11/18 09/11/25 75,000,000 72,556,305 0.70% 14,381,002 

Invesco IREF VI 09/21/22 09/22/29 100,000,000 39,031,374 0.38% 60,032,293 

Long Wharf FREG IV 08/14/13 09/30/21 25,000,000 1,255,855 0.01%

Long Wharf FREG V 10/31/16 09/30/24 50,000,000 30,779,854 0.30%

Long Wharf LREP VI 02/05/20 02/05/28 50,000,000 33,408,704 0.32% 1,803,766 

LaSalle Income & Growth Fund VI 01/31/12 01/31/19 75,000,000 14,580,258 0.14% 3,946,000 

LaSalle Income & Growth Fund VII 10/31/16 09/30/24 75,000,000 56,014,700 0.54% 87,245 

810,000,000 248,603,052 2.39% 164,703,905 

Outstanding Commitments 164,703,905 

Total 413,306,957

REAL ESTATE -Opportunistic & Distressed Inception Target # of Discretion New Target Funding Market % of Outstanding

Date Termination Extension by GP/LP Termination Commitment Value Total Asset Commitment

Blackstone BREP X 06/30/22 06/30/32 100,000,000 1 0.00% 100,000,000 

DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. III 06/30/05 06/30/14 in full liq. 75,000,000 11,711,727 0.11% 4,031,338 

DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. IV 12/31/07 09/30/18 100,000,000 52,153,148 0.50% 1,876,084 

DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. V 07/31/13 12/31/22 75,000,000 38,293,595 0.37% 6,237,473 

DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. VI 02/28/19 01/31/29 50,000,000 25,546,378 0.25% 15,687,733 

Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund V 02/01/11 02/01/21 50,000,000 780,660 0.01% 25,750,000 

Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund VI 09/30/13 09/30/20 80,000,000 23,764,467 0.23% 18,400,000 

Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund VII 02/28/15 02/28/23 65,000,000 47,247,708 0.45% 16,120,000 

PCCP Equity IX 04/11/22 04/01/30 75,000,000 46,866,075 0.45% 30,906,770 

Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opp. Fund 07/30/11 07/30/22 75,000,000 17,182,681 0.17% 5,625,000 

Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opp. Fund II 08/31/13 08/31/25 70,000,000 30,229,620 0.29% 8,015,000 

Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opp. II Co-Inv 01/31/16 10/31/25 25,000,000 12,566,248 0.12% 4,462,138 

Paulson Real Estate Fund II 11/10/13 11/10/20 20,000,000 15,348,670 0.15% 654,377 

Angelo Gordon Realty Fund VIII 12/31/11 12/31/18 80,000,000 12,654,479 0.12% 12,334,302 

Angelo Gordon Realty Fund IX 10/10/14 10/10/22 65,000,000 30,161,369 0.29% 7,572,500 

1,005,000,000 364,506,826 3.51% 257,672,715 

Outstanding Commitments 257,672,715 

Total 622,179,541

PRIVATE CREDIT Inception Target # of Discretion New Target Funding Market % of Outstanding

Date Termination Extension by GP/LP Termination Commitment Value Total Asset Commitment

Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund IV 08/01/12 08/30/20 60,000,000 5,916,812 0.06% 0

Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund V 12/31/14 09/17/22 75,000,000 7,700,251 0.07% 15,000,000

Angelo Gordon Energy Credit Opportunities 09/10/15 09/10/20 16,500,000 2,035,995 0.02% 2,319,783

CCCERA StepStone 12/01/17 11/30/27 1,170,000,000 1,028,810,783 9.91% 271,014,170 

1,524,500,000 1,044,463,841 10.06% 288,333,953

 Outstanding Commitments 288,333,953

Total 1,332,797,794



Private Market Investments

As of March 31, 2023

PRIVATE EQUITY Inception Target # of Discretion New Target Funding Market % of Outstanding

Date Termination Extension by GP/LP Termination Commitment Value Total Asset Commitment

Adams Street Partners 12/22/95 12/22/25 269,565,614 128,797,929 1.24% 17,282,948 

Adams Street Secondary II 12/31/08 12/31/20 30,000,000 3,567,745 0.03% 1,635,000 

Adams Street Secondary V 10/31/12 10/31/22 40,000,000             11,681,265 0.11% 9,154,125 

Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund 03/09/16 03/09/28 75,000,000 171,195,106 1.65% 8,962,500 

AE Industrial Partners Fund II 05/18/18 05/18/28 35,000,000 36,937,206 0.36% 11,014,253 

Bay Area Equity Fund 06/14/04 12/31/14 2nd 2 YR LP 12/31/2017 10,000,000 1,301 0.00% 0

Bay Area Equity Fund II 2/29/09 12/31/19 10,000,000 19,818,568 0.19% 0

Carpenter Community BancFund 10/31/09 10/31/19 30,000,000 0 0.00% 0

EIF USPF II 06/15/05 06/15/15 3rd 1 YR LP 06/15/18 50,000,000 37,627 0.00% 0

EIF USPF III 02/28/07 02/28/17 1st 1 YR LP 02/28/18 65,000,000 3,114,379 0.03% 0

EIF USPF IV 06/28/10 06/28/20 50,000,000 21,004,644 0.20% 4

Ares EIF V 09/09/15 11/19/25 50,000,000 30,859,204 0.30% 6,194,129 

EQT X 11/17/22 11/17/32 100,000,000 0 0.00% 100,000,000 

Genstar Capital Partners IX 02/18/19 02/18/29 50,000,000 66,510,827 0.64% 7,703,689 

Genstar Capital Partners X 04/01/21 04/01/31 42,500,000 25,096,539 0.24% 18,376,219 

GTCR VIII 10/27/20 12/31/36 50,000,000 24,666,514 0.24% 24,427,247 

Hellman & Friedman Capital Partners X 05/10/21 05/10/31 75,000,000 52,086,040 0.50% 21,027,776 

Hellman & Friedman Capital Partners XI 12/16/22 12/16/32 100,000,000 0 0.00% 100,000,000 

Leonard Green - Green Equity Investors IX 03/01/22 02/28/32 60,000,000 0 0.00% 60,000,000 

Leonard Green - Jade Equity Investors II 03/01/22 02/28/32 15,000,000 0 0.00% 15,000,000 

Oaktree Private Investment Fund 2009 02/28/10 12/15/19 40,000,000 410,257 0.00% 6,308,961

Ocean Avenue Fund II 05/07/14 05/07/24 30,000,000 27,429,424 0.26% 3,000,000

Ocean Avenue Fund III 12/09/15 12/09/25 50,000,000 52,236,036 0.50% 3,500,000

Paladin III 08/15/08 08/15/18 25,000,000 7,937,516 0.08% 387,482

Pathway 11/09/98 05/31/21 125,000,000 3,212,498 0.03% 10,503,340 

Pathway 2008 12/26/08 12/26/23 30,000,000 13,933,914 0.13% 2,673,941 

Pathway 6 05/24/11 05/24/26 40,000,000 31,743,378 0.31% 3,639,746 

Pathway 7 02/07/13 02/07/23 70,000,000 68,233,173 0.66% 5,136,859 

Pathway 8 11/23/15 11/23/25 50,000,000 70,417,987 0.68% 3,906,144 

Siguler Guff CCCERA Opportunities 06/03/14 05/31/25 200,000,000 135,252,559 1.30% 28,597,500 

Siguler Guff Secondary Opportunities 12/31/16 12/31/26 50,000,000 0 0.00% 0 

Siris Partners IV 05/18/18 05/18/28 35,000,000 40,343,521 0.39% 8,126,210 

Symphony Technology Group VII 12/21/22 12/21/32 50,000,000 0 0.00% 50,000,000 

TA XIV 05/27/21 05/27/31 50,000,000 26,301,482 0.25% 21,000,000 

TPG Healthcare Partners, L.P. 06/27/19 06/27/29 24,000,000 19,325,696 0.19% 6,689,553 

TPG Healthcare Partners II 06/30/22 06/30/32 65,000,000 0 0.00% 65,000,000 

TPG Partners IX 06/30/22 06/30/32 50,000,000 15,091,410 0.15% 33,685,397 

Trident VIII, L.P. 05/24/19 05/24/29 40,000,000 45,981,358 0.44% 5,062,283 

Trident IX, L.P. 09/17/21 09/17/31 50,000,000 15,091,410 0.15% 33,685,397 

Real Assets

Aether III & III Surplus 11/30/13 11/30/20 75,000,000 61,412,145 0.59% 2,150,961                

Aether IV 01/01/16 01/01/28 50,000,000 58,082,394 0.56% 4,516,236                

Commonfund Capital Natural Resources IX 06/30/13 06/30/20 50,000,000 37,569,120 0.36% 2,475,007                

Wastewater Opportunity Fund 12/31/15 11/30/22 25,000,000 9,010,338 0.09% 521,541                   

2,476,065,614 1,319,299,098 14.09% 667,659,051

Outstanding Commitments 667,659,051

Total 1,986,958,149

Market value equals the most recent reported net asset value, plus capital calls after net asset value date, less distributions after net asset value date.

The Target Termination column is the beginning of liquidation of the fund, however, some funds may be extended for an additional two or three years.

 

 



 
 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: May 3, 2023 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Pension administration system project update. 
  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
On April 14, 2021, the Board authorized the Chief Executive Officer to execute an agreement 
with Sagitec Solutions LLC (Sagitec) to provide pension administration system software, 
implementation, hosting and support services.  
 
CCCERA was recently notified by Sagitec that they are not able to meet the current November 
16, 2023 go-live date for the system (unless certain items are deferred) and the February 14, 
2024 go-live date for the member portal. 
 
CCCERA has considered the three alternative options that Sagitec provided. At this time, the 
preferred option of these options indicates a November 16, 2023 go-live date for the system 
(deferring certain items) and a June 17, 2024 go-live date for the member portal. Continued 
discussions will occur with CCCERA, Segal, and Sagitec in order to find a realistic, acceptable 
resolution with possible remedies. The Board will receive continued updates relating to the 
progress made. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
Informational only. No action is necessary at this time. 
 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#7



 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: May 3, 2023    

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Erica Grant, HR Manager 
 
Subject: Consider and take possible action to adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2023-2 

amending Section 6 regarding Management Administrative Leave 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Overview 
 
The CCCERA Resolution for Salary and Benefits for Unrepresented Employees has been 
reviewed and changes are needed to Section 6, Management Administrative Leave (“MAL”), in 
order to ensure compliance with California Labor Code section 227.3. The recommended 
changes provide clarification and do not change the benefits outlined in Section 6.  
 
Notable modifications to the resolution are summarized below: 
 

• Eligible employee leave banks will be subject to a maximum of ninety-four (94) hours of 
MAL at any time. If an employee has an unused balance of MAL remaining in their bank as 
of December 31, then on January 1, they will be granted the number of hours that will 
bring their bank to the ninety-four (94) hours. 

• On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any remaining balance of 
Management Administrative Leave hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 
Recommendation 
 
Consider and take possible action to adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2023-2 amending 
Section 6 regarding Management Administrative Leave. 
 
 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#8



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

CCCERA RESOLUTION FOR SALARY AND BENEFITS 
FOR UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES  

 
EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 1, 2016 

AMENDED MAY 3, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

1 | P a g e  
 

Table of Contents 
1. Paid Holidays: ............................................................................................................................................. 2 

2. Personal Holidays: ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Vacation: .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

        Vacation Buy Back:...................................................................................................................................... 4 

4. Sick Leave: .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

5. Sick Leave Incentive Plan: .......................................................................................................................... 5 

6. Management Administrative Leave ........................................................................................................... 6 

7. Other Unpaid Leaves: ................................................................................................................................. 7 

A. Medical/Family Illness/Child Care Leave (FMLA/CFRA LEAVE) .............................................................. 7 

B. Pregnancy Disability Leave ..................................................................................................................... 8 

C.    Military Leave .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

8. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits ......................................................................................................... 9 

    Health and Dental Coverage Upon Retirement ....................................................................................... 10 

9. Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance ..................................................................................... 12 

10.   State Disability Insurance ......................................................................................................................... 12 

11.   Life Insurance ........................................................................................................................................... 12 

12.   Workers Compensation Insurance ........................................................................................................... 13 

13.   Health Care Spending Account ................................................................................................................. 14 

14.   Dependent Care Assistance Program ....................................................................................................... 14 

15.   Premium Conversion Plan ........................................................................................................................ 14 

16.   Vision Insurance ....................................................................................................................................... 14 

17.   Retirement: .............................................................................................................................................. 14 

    CCCERA Membership: .............................................................................................................................. 15 

    Deferred Compensation: .......................................................................................................................... 15 

18.   General Training ....................................................................................................................................... 16 

19.   Other Job-Related Training ...................................................................................................................... 16 

20.   Professional Development Reimbursement ............................................................................................ 17 

21.   Salary ........................................................................................................................................................ 17 

22.   Overtime .................................................................................................................................................. 17 

23.   Differential Pay ......................................................................................................................................... 17 

A. Longevity .............................................................................................................................................. 17 

B. Certificate Differentials ........................................................................................................................ 18 

 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

2 | P a g e  
 

WHEREAS, the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA") is a public 
agency established by virtue of, and governed by the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937, 
Government Code sections 31450, et seq., (“CERL”) and Article XVI, section 17 of the California 
Constitution. 
  
WHEREAS, CCCERA administers a retirement system for the County of Contra Costa and for other 
participating employers located within the County, including CCCERA, by and through its Board of 
Retirement (“Board”), and as the Board delegates to its employees who are appointed by CCCERA 
pursuant to CERL section 31529.9 (“CCCERA Employees.”) 
  

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to provide salary and benefits to the unrepresented employees of 
CCCERA, effective from January 1, 2015 until further notice; 

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that effective January 1, 2015 and until further notice 
employees of CCCERA in the job classifications identified on Attachment A hereto shall receive the 
following salary and benefits: 

 
 

1. Paid Holidays:  
 

CCCERA observes the following paid holidays during the term covered by this Resolution: 
 
New Year’s Day Labor Day 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Veterans’ Day 
Presidents’ Day Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving 
Independence Day Christmas Day 

 
Any paid holiday observed by CCCERA that falls on a Saturday is observed on the preceding 
Friday and any paid holiday that falls on a Sunday is observed on the following Monday. 

 

Eligibility for Paid Holidays: Regular full-time employees are entitled to a paid day off in 
recognition of the holiday without a reduction in monthly base pay for CCCERA-observed 
holidays listed above.   

 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] 
are entitled to the listed paid holidays on a pro rata basis. For example, a part time 
employee whose position hours are 24 per week is entitled to 4.8 hours off work on a 
holiday (24/40 x 8 = 4.8).  

 

When a paid holiday falls on a part-time employee’s normally scheduled work day and the 
part-time paid holiday hours are more than the normally scheduled work hours the 
employee is entitled to receive flexible compensation hours or pay at the rate of one times 
the employees’ base rate of pay for the difference between the employee’s normally 
scheduled work hours and the paid part-time holiday hours. 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

3 | P a g e  
 

When a paid holiday falls on a part-time employee’s normally scheduled work day and the 
part-time paid holiday hours are less than the normally scheduled work hours the employee 
must use non-sick leave accruals for the difference between the employee’s normally 
scheduled work hours and the part-time paid holiday hours. If the employee does not have 
any non-sick leave accrual balances, leave without pay will be authorized. 

 

Flexible Compensation: Flexible Compensation may not be accumulated in excess of 288 
hours. After 288 hours are accrued by an employee, the employee will receive flexible pay at 
the rate of 1.0 times the employee’s base rate of pay. Flexible compensation may be taken 
on those dates and times determined by mutual agreement of the employee and their 
supervisor. 
 

2. Personal Holidays: 
 
Regular employees subject to this Resolution are entitled to accrue up to two hours of 
personal holiday credit each month.  
 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] 
accrue personal holiday hours on a pro rata basis.  
 
No employee may accrue more than forty hours of personal holiday credit at any time.  
Once the employee reaches forty hours of personal holiday, the employee will cease 
accruing such paid time off until he/she uses sufficient such time to reduce his/her bank 
below the forty-hour maximum, after at which time the employee may begin to accrue 
additional hours up to the forty-hour maximum. 
 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any accrued and unused 
personal holiday hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 
 

3. Vacation:  
 

Regular full-time employees subject to this Resolution are entitled to accrue paid vacation as 
follows: 

 
 
 
Length of Service* 

Monthly 
Accrual 
Hours 

Maximum  
Cumulative 
Hours  

Fewer than 11 years 10 240 

11 years 10-2/3 256 

12 years 11-1/3 272 

13 years 12 288 

14 years 12-2/3 304 

15 through 19 years 13-1/3 320 

20 through 24 years 16-2/3 400 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Length of Service* 

Monthly 
Accrual 
Hours 

Maximum  
Cumulative 
Hours  

25 through 29 years 20 480 

30 years and up 23-1/3 560 

* Includes County service if employed at CCCERA before January 1, 2015. 

 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] 
are entitled to the listed paid vacation on a pro rata basis. 

 

Employees may accrue paid vacation time up to a maximum of twice their annual vacation 
accrual.  That is, for a full-time employee with 8 years of service, the employee may accrue 
up to a maximum of 240 hours (120 hours maximum annual accrual x 2 = 240 hours).  Once 
the employee reaches this maximum cumulative hours, she/he will cease accruing paid 
vacation time until he/she uses sufficient vacation to drop below the maximum cumulative 
hours after which time the employee may begin to accrue additional hours up to the 
maximum cumulative hours. 

 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any accrued and unused 
vacation hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 

Vacation Buy Back: 

 

A. With the exception of the Chief Executive Officer, employees may elect payment of 
up to one-third (1/3) of their annual vacation accrual, subject to the following 
conditions:  

(1) the choice can be made only once every thirteen (13) months and there must be 
at least twelve (12) full months between each election;  

(2) payment is based on an hourly rate determined by dividing the employee’s 
current salary by 173.33; and  

(3) the maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is one-
third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 

B. The Chief Executive Officer may elect payment of up to one-third (1/3) of their 
annual vacation accrual, subject to the following conditions: 

(1) the choice can be made only once in each calendar year;  

(2) payment is based on an hourly rate determined by dividing the employee’s 
current salary by 173.33; and  

(3) the maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is one-
third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 
C. The vacation buy back election must be made in the calendar year preceding the year 

of the vacation sale. Hours that an employee elects to cash out are not available for 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

5 | P a g e  
 

the employee to use as vacation.  If a vacation buy back election is not made in the 
preceding calendar year, it will be considered a declination of the vacation sale for 
the year.  

 

NOTE: Where a lump-sum payment is made to employees as a retroactive general salary 
adjustment for a portion of a calendar year that is subsequent to the exercise by an 
employee of the vacation buy-back provision herein, that employee’s vacation buy-back will 
be adjusted to reflect the percentage difference in base pay rates upon which the lump-sum 
payment was computed, provided that the period covered by the lump-sum payment 
includes the effective date of the vacation buy-back. For example: In May a salary increase is 
approved with an effective date of January 1st and the employee completed a vacation buy-
back in March, a lump sum payment for the difference in base pay of the vacation buy-back 
would be calculated.   

 

4. Sick Leave:  

 

Regular full-time employees subject to this Resolution shall earn paid sick leave benefits at 
the rate of eight (8) hours per month.  Regular part-time employees [who are regularly 
scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] are entitled to sick leave benefits on a 
pro rata basis.  

 

Unused sick leave hours accumulate from year to year. When an employee is separated, 
other than through retirement, accumulated sick leave hours shall be cancelled, unless the 
separation results from layoff, in which case the accumulated hours shall be restored if 
reemployed in a regular position within the period of layoff eligibility. At retirement, 
employees are credited, at the rate of one day for each one day earned, with sick leave 
accumulated as of the day of retirement and that sick leave credit counts as additional 
retirement service credit.  

 

For more information on sick leave benefits please refer to the CCCERA Personnel Policies. 

 

5. Sick Leave Incentive Plan:  

 

Employees may be eligible for a payoff of a part of unused sick leave accruals at separation. 
The sick leave incentive plan is an incentive for employees to safeguard sick leave accruals as 
protection against wage loss due to time lost for injury or illness. Payoff must be approved 
by the Chief Executive Officer, and is subject to the following conditions: 

 

➢ The employee must have resigned in good standing 

➢ Payout is not available if the employee is eligible to retire 

➢ The balance of sick leave at resignation must be at least 70% of accruals earned in 
the preceding continuous period of employment excluding any sick leave use 
covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), the California Family Rights Act 
(CFRA) or the California Pregnancy Disability Act (PDL). 

➢ Payout is by the following schedule: 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

6 | P a g e  
 

 

Years of Payment 
Continuous Service 

Payment of 
Unused Sick Leave 

Payable 

3 – 5 years 30% 

5 – 7 years 40% 

7 plus years 50% 

  

➢ No payoff will be made pursuant to this section unless CCCERA certifies that an 
employee requesting as sick leave payoff has terminated membership in, and has 
withdrawn their contributions from CCCERA. 

➢ It is the intent of the Board of Retirement that payments made pursuant to this 
section are in lieu of CCCERA retirement benefits resulting from employment with 
any of the employers in the CCCERA retirement plan.  

 

6. Management Administrative Leave 

 

Management Administrative Leave is authorized and paid time away from the job for any 
personal activities and needs, and that is separate and apart from which are not charged to 
sick leave time or vacation hours. Unrepresented employees who are exempt, and who are 
not eligible for from the payment of overtime, are eligible for this benefit. 

 

Use of Management Administrative Leave (“MAL”) may be requested whenever desired by 
the employee; however; , but approval of leave requests shall beare subject to the same 
department process as used for consideration of vacation requests. 

 

All unused Management Administrative Leave will be cancelled at 11:59 p.m. on December 
31st of each year. 

 

A. On January 1st of each year, all full-time unrepresented exempt employees, who are 
exempt from the payment of overtime and in paid status, will be credited withhave 
their Management Administrative Leave bank replenished such that it contains a 
maximum of ninety- four (94) hours of paid Management Administrative LeaveMAL. All 
Management Administrative Leave is non-accruable and all balances will be zeroed out 
on December 31st of each year. 

Cap.  Employees may hold a maximum of ninety-four (94) hours of MAL at any time.  If 
an employee has any unused balance of MAL remaining in their bank as of December 
31, then on January 1, they will be granted the number of hours that will bring their 
bank to the maximum of ninety-four (94) hours.  For example, an employee who uses a 
total 80 hours of MAL in 2023 will have a balance of 14 hours remaining on December 
31, 2023.  On January 1, 2024, that employee will be granted 80 MAL hours, to bring 
their MAL bank to the 94-hour maximum. 

 

B. Regular part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

7 | P a g e  
 

hours per week] are eligible for Management Administrative Leave on a prorated basis, 
based upon their position hours. 
Part-time employees are subject to the cap described in Section 6.A, above, on a 
prorated basis. 
 

C. Employees appointed who become eligible for MAL(i.e., (they are hired or promoted) to 
a management qualifying exempt position) are eligible for Management Administrative 
Leave on the first day of the month following their appointment eligibility date and will 
receive Management Administrative Leave on a prorated basis for that first year. 

 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any remaining balance of 
Management Administrative Leave hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 
 

7. Other Unpaid Leaves: 

 

CCCERA provides leaves of absence to eligible employees in a variety of circumstances.  In all 
cases, CCCERA intends to comply with applicable federal and state laws.  For additional 
information on unpaid leaves please refer to the CCCERA Personnel Policies. 

 

• Pregnancy disability leave may be requested by any employee at any time. 

• Workers’ compensation leave is provided to any employee as needed. 

• Leave as a reasonable accommodation of an employee’s disability is provided 
to any employee as needed. 

Request for Leave:  As soon as an employee learns of the need for a leave of absence, the 
employee should submit a request for leave to the Administrative/HR Manager.  Request 
forms are available from Human Resources.  Any leave request must state the purpose of the 
leave being requested.  If approved, the leave must be used for that purpose. 

A. Medical/Family Illness/Child Care Leave (FMLA/CFRA LEAVE)  
 

Eligible employees may request an unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) of up to 18 
workweeks in a rolling 12-month period (measured backwards from the date the leave 
begins) for any of the following reasons: 

• Birth of the employee’s child and to care for the child within the first year of 
birth;  

• The care of an adopted or foster child which the first year of placement with 
the employee; 

• Care for the employee’s child, spouse or domestic partner, or parent with a 
serious health condition;  



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

8 | P a g e  
 

• Serious health condition of the employee; 

• A qualifying exigency arising out of an eligible family member’s call to military 
duty; or 

• To care for a covered military service member who is the employee’s eligible 
family member/next-of-kin. 

For purposes of this Resolution, an eligible employee is one who has completed one year of 
continuous employment with CCCERA and worked a minimum of 1,250 hours during the 
preceding 12 months. 

Medical certification is required for leaves necessitated by the serious health condition of the 
employee or of a family member, but an employee or his/her health care provider need not, 
and should not, disclose the employee’s underlying condition. medical history, results of 
tests, or any genetic information.    A “serious health condition” means an illness, injury, 
impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves any of the following: 

• Time or treatment in connection with inpatient care; 

• Period of incapacity of more than three consecutive days that involves 
treatment by a health care provider; or 

• Any period of incapacity or treatment that is permanent or long term. 

Employees will continue to be covered by CCCERA health insurance benefits under pre-leave 
conditions during the entire approved FMLA leave. 

FMLA leave is unpaid, except that employees [may elect to use any accrued vacation, sick, 
personal holiday or management administrative leave time. 

Intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule may be approved with medical certification for 
an employee’s Serious Health Condition, for the employee to care for a child, parent, spouse, 
or domestic partner (under the CFRA only) with a serious health condition. 

Medical certification that the employee is released to return to work is required before the 
employee will be permitted to return. 

If an employee needs to extend his or her leave, he/she must request an extension for 
FMLA/CFRA leave as soon as practicable after he/she has knowledge of the need for 
additional leave time. Recertification by a treating health care provider may be required every 
30 calendar days in connection with an employee’s absence where appropriate. 

B. Pregnancy Disability Leave 
 

Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL) is a leave due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related reasons 
preventing the employee from performing her job functions.  PDL includes leave needed for 
prenatal care and prenatal complications. 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

9 | P a g e  
 

Employees may take up to a maximum of four months of PDL per pregnancy.  Medical 
certification of the need for the leave is required, and the length of PDL will depend on the 
medical necessity for the leave.  Medical certification that the employee is released to return 
to work is required before the employee will be permitted to return. 

Employees will continue to be covered by CCCERA health insurance benefits under pre-leave 
conditions during the entire approved PDL. 

Leave for pregnancy disability is unpaid, except that employees may elect to use any accrued 
vacation, sick, personal holiday or management administrative leave time. 

C.  Military Leave 
 

Federal and state mandated-military leaves of absence are granted without pay to members 
of the United States Uniformed Services, the California National Guard, or the reserves.  To be 
eligible, an employee must submit written verification from the appropriate military 
authority.  Such leaves will be granted in accordance with state and federal law.  

When an employee goes on Military Leave for more than 30 days, any applicable group 
insurance (existing provisions will apply) continues for 90 days following the commencement 
of unpaid Military Leave. Beyond the 90 days, the employee may elect to continue the same 
group health care coverage, including dependent coverage, if applicable, for up to 24 months 
at his/her own expense. 

An employee may elect to use accrued personal holidays, vacation, and/or management 
administrative leave at the beginning of unpaid military service or may retain earned and 
accrued vacation for use upon return from the leave. The employee must provide this 
request/election in writing to Administrative/HR Manager prior to the start of the military 
leave. 

At the conclusion of military service, an employee will be reinstated upon giving notice of 
his/her intent to return to work by either (1) reporting to work or (2) submitting a timely oral 
or written request to CCCERA for reinstatement within 90 days of days after their release 
from active duty or any extended period required by law. The Military Leave will expire upon 
the employee’s failure to request reinstatement or return to work in a timely manner after 
conclusion of service. 

8. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits 

 
Regular full-time and part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum 
of 20 hours per week] and their eligible dependents may be entitled to receive medical and 
dental insurance coverage through CCCERA Plans.  Attached hereto as Attachment B, is the 
monthly premium subsidy for unrepresented employees. 

Effective January 1, 2016, CCCERA shall offer an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 Flexible 
Benefits Plan that offers (i) CalPERS health plan coverages for each eligible employee and the 
employee's eligible family members and (ii) at least one other nontaxable benefit.  CCCERA 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

10 | P a g e  
 

shall make monthly contributions under the plan for each eligible employee and their 
dependents (if applicable) up to the relevant amount set forth in Attachment B.  Such 
contributions shall consist of (i) the Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC) established by 
the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act, and designated by CCCERA as the MEC, 
and (ii) the additional amount of such contributions in excess of the MEC. 
 
Any eligible employee who enrolls in health coverage with a higher total premium than 
CCCERA’s contributions with respect to the eligible employee, as stated in Attachment B, will 
pay the difference via pre-tax payroll deductions under the plan to the extent permitted by 
Internal Revenue Code Section 125. 
 
Dual Coverage: Each employee, eligible dependent and retiree may be covered by only a 
single CCCERA health or dental plan. 

Please refer any questions about medical/dental benefits to Human Resources.   
 
Health and Dental Coverage Upon Retirement 

 
1. Any CCCERA retiree or their eligible dependent who becomes age 65 on or after January 

1, 2009 and who is eligible for Medicare must immediately enroll in Medicare Parts A 

and B. 

 

2. For employees hired by Contra Costa County or CCCERA on or after January 1, 2009 and 

their eligible dependents, upon completion of five (5) years of CCCERA service, an 

eligible employee who retires from CCCERA may retain continuous coverage of a 

CCCERA health and/or dental plan provided that:  

 

i. he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 

within 120 days of separation from CCCERA employment and  

ii. he or she pays the difference between the Public Employees’ Medical and 

Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) minimum contribution and the premium cost of 

the health plan. He or she pays the full premium of the dental plan without any 

CCCERA premium subsidy. 

 

3. For employees hired by Contra Costa County before January 1, 2009 and their eligible 

dependents, upon completion of five (5) years of CCCERA service, an eligible employee 

who retires from CCCERA may retain continuous coverage of a CCCERA health and/or 

dental plan provided that they meet the requirements listed below:  

  

i. he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 

within 120 days of separation from CCCERA employment and  



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

11 | P a g e  
 

ii. he or she pays the difference between the monthly premium subsidy 

established by the Board of Retirement for eligible employees and their eligible 

dependents and the premium cost of the health/dental plan.1 

 

1 CCCERA will pay the health/dental plan monthly premium subsidy established by the Board of Retirement for eligible retirees and 

their eligible dependents. 

 

4. All periods of benefit eligible employment will be included in the five (5) years of 
service calculation for purposes of health and dental coverage upon retirement. 

 

5. Employees who were on an authorized leave of absence without pay prior to retiring 
must have maintained coverage through CCCERA and paid the applicable premiums 
during their authorized leave of absence in order to be eligible for coverage under this 
Section. 

 

6. Employees, who resign and file for a deferred retirement and their eligible 
dependents, may continue in their CCCERA group health and/or dental plan under the 
following conditions and limitations: 

i. Health and dental coverage during the deferred retirement period is totally at 
the expense of the employee, without any CCCERA contributions. 

ii. Life insurance coverage is not included. 
iii. To continue health and dental coverage, the employee must: 

 
a. be qualified for a deferred retirement under the 1937 Retirement Act 

provisions; 
b. be an active member of a CCCERA group health and/or dental plan at 

the time of filing their deferred retirement application and elect to 
continue plan benefits; 

c. be eligible for a monthly allowance from the Retirement System and 
direct receipt of a monthly allowance within one hundred twenty (120) 
days of application for deferred retirement; and 

d. file an election to defer retirement and to continue health benefits 
hereunder with CCCERA within thirty (30) days before separation from 
CCCERA service. 

 
iv. Deferred retirees who elect continued health benefits hereunder and their 

eligible dependents may maintain continuous membership in their CCCERA 
health and/or dental plan group during the period of deferred retirement by 
paying the full premium for health and dental coverage on or before the 10th 
of each month, to CCCERA. When the deferred retirees begin to receive 
retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental 
coverage listed above, as similarly situated retirees who did not defer 
retirement. 

 
v. Deferred retirees may elect retiree health benefits hereunder without 

electing to maintain participation in their CCCERA health and/or dental plan 
during their deferred retirement period. When they begin to receive 
retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

12 | P a g e  
 

coverage as listed above, as similarly situated retirees who did not defer 
retirement. 

 
vi. Employees who elect deferred retirement will not be eligible in any event for 

CCCERA health and/or dental premium subsidies unless the member draws 
a monthly retirement allowance within one hundred twenty days (120) after 
separation from CCCERA employment. 

 
vii. Deferred retirees and their eligible dependents are required to meet the 

same eligibility provisions for retiree health/dental coverage as similarly 
situated retirees who did not defer retirement. 

 
7. For employees who retire and are eligible to receive a medical premium subsidy that 

is greater than the PEMHCA minimum contribution, each month during which such 

retiree medical coverage continues, CCCERA will provide each such retiree with a 

medical expense reimbursement plan (MERP), also known as a health reimbursement 

arrangement (HRA), subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 105, with a monthly 

credit equal to the excess of (i) the relevant medical coverage monthly premium 

subsidy set forth in Attachment B for such eligible retiree and his or her eligible family 

members over (ii) the then current MEC. 

 

9. Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance 

 

CCCERA will provide Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance. 

 

10. State Disability Insurance 

 

Unrepresented employees do not contribute towards State Disability Insurance. 

 

11. Life Insurance  

 

For employees who are enrolled in CCCERA’s program of medical or dental coverage as 
either the primary or the dependent, term life insurance in the amount of ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000) will be provided by CCCERA.  

 

Management employees, with the exception of the Chief Executive Officer will also receive 
fifty-seven thousand dollars ($57,000) in addition to the life insurance provided above. The 
Chief Executive Officer will receive an additional sixty thousand dollars ($60,000) in addition 
to the ten thousand dollars ($10,000) insurance provided above. 

 

In addition to the life insurance benefits provided by CCCERA, employees may subscribe 
voluntarily and at their own expense for supplemental life insurance. Please refer to Human 
Resources for additional information. 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

13 | P a g e  
 

 

12. Workers Compensation Insurance 
 

CCCERA provides workers' compensation benefits to employees who sustain a work-related 
injury or illness, and claims are processed through an adjusting agent/insurance carrier as 
designated by CCCERA, which administers workers' compensation claims and provides benefits 
and services to injured employees.  A worker's compensation injury is any injury or illness that 
arises out of and in the course of employment (AOE/COE) (Labor Code section 3600). 

 

1. Waiting Period: There is a three (3) calendar day waiting period before workers’ 
compensation benefits commence. If the injured worker loses any time on the date of 
injury, that day counts as day one (1) of the waiting period. If the injured worker does 
not lose time on the date of the injury, the waiting period is the first three (3) days 
following the date of the injury. The time the employee is scheduled to work during this 
waiting period will be charged to the employee’s sick leave and/or vacation accruals. In 
order to qualify for workers’ compensation the employee must be under the care of a 
physician. Temporary compensation is payable on the first three (3) days of disability 
when the injury necessitates hospitalization, or when the disability exceeds fourteen (14) 
days. 

 

2. Continuing Pay: Permanent employees shall continue to receive the appropriate percent 
as per Labor Code section 4650 et. seq. of their regular monthly salary during any period 
of compensable temporary disability not to exceed one year. Payment of continuing pay 
and/or temporary disability compensation is made in accordance with Part 2, Article 3 of 
the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California. "Compensable temporary disability 
absence" for the purpose of this Section, is any absence due to work connected disability 
which qualifies for temporary disability compensation as set forth in Part 2, Article 3 of 
the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California. 

 

When any disability becomes medically permanent and stationary and/or reaches 
maximum medical improvement, the salary provided in this Section shall terminate. No 
charge shall be made against sick leave or vacation for these payments. Sick leave and 
vacation rights shall not accrue for those periods during which continuing pay is 
received.  

 

Employees shall be entitled to a maximum of one (1) year of continuing pay benefits for 
any one injury or illness.  

 

Continuing pay begins at the same time that temporary workers’ compensation benefits 
commence and continues until either the member is declared medically 
permanent/stationary, or until one (1) year of continuing pay, whichever comes first, 
provided the employee remains in an active employed status. Continuing pay is 
automatically terminated on the date an employee is separated from CCCERA by 
resignation, retirement, layoff, or the employee is no longer employed by CCCERA. In 
these instances, employees will be paid workers’ compensation benefits as prescribed by 
workers’ compensation laws. All continuing pay must be cleared through CCCERA. 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

14 | P a g e  
 

3. Physician Visits: Whenever an employee who has been injured on the job and has 
returned to work is required by an attending physician to leave work for treatment 
during working hours, the employee is allowed time off, up to three (3) hours for such 
treatment, without loss of pay or benefits. Said visits are to be scheduled contiguous to 
either the beginning or end of the scheduled workday whenever possible. This provision 
applies only to injuries/illnesses that have been accepted by CCCERA as work related. 

 

13. Health Care Spending Account 

 

After six (6) months of regular employment, full time and part time (20/40 or greater) 
employees may elect to participate in a Health Care Spending Account (HCSA) Program 
designated to qualify for tax savings under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but 
such savings are not guaranteed. The HCSA Program allows employees to set aside a 
predetermined amount of money from their pay, before taxes, for health care expenses not 
reimbursed by any other health benefit plans. HCSA dollars may be expended on any eligible 
medical expenses allowed by Internal Revenue Code Section 125. Any unused balance over 
five hundred dollars ($500) is forfeited and cannot be recovered by the employee. Please 
refer to Human Resources for more information on the HCSA Program. 

 

14. Dependent Care Assistance Program 

 

Full time and part time (20/40 or greater) employees may elect to participate in a 
Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) designed to qualify for tax savings under 
Section 129 of the Internal Revenue Code, but such savings are not guaranteed. The 
program allows employees to set aside up to five thousand ($5,000) of annual salary (before 
taxes) per calendar year to pay for eligible dependent care (child and elder care) expenses. 
According to IRS regulations, any unused balance is forfeited and may not be recovered by 
the employee. Please refer to Human Resources for more information on DCAP. 

 

15. Premium Conversion Plan 

 

CCCERA offers the Premium Conversion Plan (PCP) designed to qualify for tax savings under 
Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but tax savings are not guaranteed. The program 
allows employees to use pre-tax salary to pay health and dental premiums. Please refer to 
Human Resources for more information on the PCP. 

 

16. Vision Insurance 

 
CCCERA will pay 100% of the employee only premium for EyeMed Option 2 vision coverage 
and up to two hours of CCCERA paid time for exam and to obtain glasses. Employees may 
obtain spouse and dependent coverage at their own cost.  

 

17. Retirement: 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

15 | P a g e  
 

CCCERA Membership: 

Contributions: Employees are responsible for the payment of one hundred percent of 
the employees’ basic retirement benefit contributions determined annually by the 
Board. Employees are also responsible for the payment of the employee’s contributions 
to the retirement cost-of-living program as determined annually by the Board. CCCERA is 
responsible for payment of one hundred percent of the employer’s retirement 
contributions as determined annually by the Board. 

A. Employees who are not classified as new members under PEPRA will be enrolled in 
Retirement Tier 1 enhanced. For more information on retirement tiers please refer to 
the CCCERA member handbooks. 

B. Employees who are classified as new members under PEPRA will be enrolled in 
Retirement IV (3% COLA). For more information on retirement tiers please refer to the 
CCCERA member handbooks. 

C. CCCERA will implement Section 414(h) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code which allows 
CCCERA to reduce the gross monthly pay of employees by an amount equal to the 
employee’s total contribution to the CCCERA Retirement Plan before Federal and State 
income taxes are withheld, and forward that amount to the CCCERA Retirement Plan. 
This program of deferred retirement contribution will be universal and non-voluntary as 
required by statute. 

 
Deferred Compensation: 

A. CCCERA will contribute eighty-five dollars ($85) per month to each employee who 
participates in CCCERA’s Deferred Compensation Plan. To be eligible for this Deferred 
Compensation Incentive, the employee must contribute to the deferred compensation 
plan as indicated below: 

 

Employees with Current 
Monthly Salary of: 

Qualifying Base 
Contribution Amount 

Monthly Contribution 
Required to Maintain 
Incentive Program Eligibility 

$2,500 and below $250 $50 

$2,501 – 3,334 $500 $50 

$3,335 – 4,167 $750 $50 

$4,168 – 5,000 $1,000 $50 

$5,001 – 5,834 $1,500 $100 

$5,835 – 6,667 $2,000 $100 

$6,668 and above $2,500 $100 

 

Employees who discontinue contributions or who contribute less than the required 
amount per month for a period of one (1) month or more will no longer be eligible for the 
eighty-five dollars ($85) Deferred Compensation Incentive. To reestablish eligibility, 
employees must again make a Base Contribution Amounts as set forth above based on 
current monthly salary. Employees with a break in deferred compensation contributions 
either because of an approved medical leave or an approved financial hardship 
withdrawal will not be required to reestablish eligibility. Further, employees who lose 
eligibility due to displacement by layoff, but maintain contributions at the required level 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

16 | P a g e  
 

and are later employed in an eligible position, will not be required to reestablish 
eligibility. 

 

B. Regular employees hired on and after January 1, 2009 will receive one hundred and fifty 
dollars ($150) per month to an employee’s account in the Contra Costa County Deferred 
Compensation Plan or other tax-qualified savings program designated by CCCERA, for 
employees who meet all of the following conditions: 

1. The employee must be hired by CCCERA on or after January 1, 2009. 

2. The employee is not eligible for a monthly premium subsidy for health and/or dental 
upon retirement as set forth in Section 8. 

3. The employee must be appointed to a regular position. The position may be either   full 
time or part time (designated at a minimum of 20 hours per week). 

4. The employee must have been employed by CCCERA or Contra Costa County for at 
least 90 calendar days. 

5. The employee must contribute a minimum of twenty-five dollars ($25) per month to 
the Contra Costa County Deferred Compensation Plan, or other tax-qualified savings 
program designated by CCCERA. 

6. The employee must complete and sign the required enrollment form(s) for his/her 
deferred compensation account and submit those forms to Human Resources. 

7. The employee may not exceed the annual maximum contribution amount allowable by 
the United States Internal Revenue Code. 

8. Employees are eligible to apply for loans from the Contra Costa County Deferred 
Compensation Plan loan program. For more information on the loan program refer to 
Human Resources. 

 

18. General Training 

 
CCCERA periodically provides training to employees on its harassment prevention and equal 
opportunity/discrimination policies.  The purpose of these training sessions is to inform and 
remind employees of CCCERA’s policies on these matters.  These training sessions are 
mandatory. 

Employees also receive safety training as part of CCCERA’s Injury and Illness Prevention 
program. 

19. Other Job-Related Training  

 
Employees may request to attend training sessions on topics that are directly related to the 
employee’s current job and that are likely to improve the employee’s job knowledge and 
skills.  Requests to attend training must be submitted to the employee’s department 
manager.  It is within the sole discretion of CCCERA whether or not to grant a training 
request. 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

17 | P a g e  
 

20. Professional Development Reimbursement 
 

To encourage personal and professional growth which is beneficial to both CCCERA and the 
employee, CCCERA reimburses for certain expenses incurred by employees which are related 
to an employee’s current work assignment. 

Expenses that may be eligible for reimbursement include certification programs and courses 
offered through accredited colleges, universities and technical schools. 

Guidelines:  Prior to registering for a course, the employee must provide appropriate 
information to Human Resources to begin the approval process. 

If granted, reimbursement may be used to defray actual costs of tuition, registration, testing 
materials, testing fees and books only and is limited to $2,000 per year.   

Course attendance, study, class assignments and exams must be accomplished outside of the 
employee’s regular working hours. 

Reimbursement:  Reimbursement will only be provided for course work in which the 
employee achieves a grade of C or better. Reimbursement will be provided only to employees 
who are employed by CCCERA at the time CCCERA receives evidence of satisfactory 
completion of the course or certification exam. 

If the employee does not successfully complete the course or certification exam, no 
reimbursement will be provided. 

Exceptions: For classifications which require a certification or technical license, CCCERA will 
reimburse the entire cost of certification fees and membership dues without reducing the 
maximum annual Professional Development Reimbursement amount.  

21. Salary 

 
Attached hereto as Attachment A, is the salary schedule for all classifications of 
unrepresented employees. 

22. Overtime 

 
Unrepresented employees who are exempt from the payment of overtime are not entitled to 
receive overtime pay, flexible compensatory, or overtime compensatory time. Unrepresented 
employees who are non-exempt from the payment of overtime will receive overtime for 
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the workweek and paid at a rate of time and one-half 
their hourly rate of pay. 

23. Differential Pay 

 
A. Longevity 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

18 | P a g e  
 

 
Ten Years of Service: 

Employees who have completed ten (10) years of service for CCCERA* are eligible to receive a 
two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the first day of the month 
following the month in which the employee qualifies for the ten (10) year service award.  

Fifteen Years of Service: 

Employees who have completed fifteen (15) years of service for CCCERA* are eligible to 
receive an additional two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the 
first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the fifteen 
(15) year service award. 

Twenty Years of Service: 

Employees in the General Counsel classification who have completed twenty (20) years of 
service for CCCERA* will receive an additional two percent (2%) longevity differential effective 
on the first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the 
twenty (20) year service award. 

*For employees hired prior to January 1, 2019 upon completion of required years of service 
for Contra Costa County and/or CCCERA will qualify. 

B. Certificate Differentials 
 
NOTE: No employee may receive more than one certificate differential at one time, 
regardless of the number of certificates held by that employee. 
 

➢ Accounting Certificate Differential 

Incumbents of unrepresented professional accounting, auditing or fiscal officer positions 
who possess one of the following active certifications will receive a differential of five 
percent (5%) of base monthly salary:  

 

(1) a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) license issued by the State of California, 
Department of Consumer Affairs, Board of Accountancy;  

(2) a Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) certification issued by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors;  

(3) a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) certification issued by the Institute of 
Management Accountants; or  

(4) a Certified Government Financial Manager (CGFM) certification issued by the 
Association of Government Accountants. 

 
➢ Associate of the Society of Actuaries (ASA) 

Employees who possess an active ASA certification will receive a differential of five percent 
(5%) of base monthly salary. Verification of eligibility for any such differential must be 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-21 

19 | P a g e  
 

provided to Human Resources.  
 
 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

CCCERA RESOLUTION FOR SALARY AND BENEFITS 
FOR UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES  

 
EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 1, 2016 

AMENDED MAY 3, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

1 | P a g e  
 

Table of Contents 
1. Paid Holidays: ............................................................................................................................................. 2 

2. Personal Holidays: ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Vacation: .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

        Vacation Buy Back:...................................................................................................................................... 4 

4. Sick Leave: .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

5. Sick Leave Incentive Plan: .......................................................................................................................... 5 

6. Management Administrative Leave ........................................................................................................... 6 

7. Other Unpaid Leaves: ................................................................................................................................. 7 

A. Medical/Family Illness/Child Care Leave (FMLA/CFRA LEAVE) .............................................................. 7 

B. Pregnancy Disability Leave ..................................................................................................................... 8 

C.    Military Leave .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

8. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits ......................................................................................................... 9 

    Health and Dental Coverage Upon Retirement ....................................................................................... 10 

9. Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance ..................................................................................... 12 

10.   State Disability Insurance ......................................................................................................................... 12 

11.   Life Insurance ........................................................................................................................................... 12 

12.   Workers Compensation Insurance ........................................................................................................... 12 

13.   Health Care Spending Account ................................................................................................................. 13 

14.   Dependent Care Assistance Program ....................................................................................................... 14 

15.   Premium Conversion Plan ........................................................................................................................ 14 

16.   Vision Insurance ....................................................................................................................................... 14 

17.   Retirement: .............................................................................................................................................. 14 

    CCCERA Membership: .............................................................................................................................. 14 

    Deferred Compensation: .......................................................................................................................... 15 

18.   General Training ....................................................................................................................................... 16 

19.   Other Job-Related Training ...................................................................................................................... 16 

20.   Professional Development Reimbursement ............................................................................................ 16 

21.   Salary ........................................................................................................................................................ 17 

22.   Overtime .................................................................................................................................................. 17 

23.   Differential Pay ......................................................................................................................................... 17 

A. Longevity .............................................................................................................................................. 17 

B. Certificate Differentials ........................................................................................................................ 18 

 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

2 | P a g e  
 

WHEREAS, the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA") is a public 
agency established by virtue of, and governed by the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937, 
Government Code sections 31450, et seq., (“CERL”) and Article XVI, section 17 of the California 
Constitution. 
  
WHEREAS, CCCERA administers a retirement system for the County of Contra Costa and for other 
participating employers located within the County, including CCCERA, by and through its Board of 
Retirement (“Board”), and as the Board delegates to its employees who are appointed by CCCERA 
pursuant to CERL section 31529.9 (“CCCERA Employees.”) 
  

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to provide salary and benefits to the unrepresented employees of 
CCCERA, effective from January 1, 2015 until further notice; 

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that effective January 1, 2015 and until further notice 
employees of CCCERA in the job classifications identified on Attachment A hereto shall receive the 
following salary and benefits: 

 
 

1. Paid Holidays:  
 

CCCERA observes the following paid holidays during the term covered by this Resolution: 
 
New Year’s Day Labor Day 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Veterans’ Day 
Presidents’ Day Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving 
Independence Day Christmas Day 

 
Any paid holiday observed by CCCERA that falls on a Saturday is observed on the preceding 
Friday and any paid holiday that falls on a Sunday is observed on the following Monday. 

 

Eligibility for Paid Holidays: Regular full-time employees are entitled to a paid day off in 
recognition of the holiday without a reduction in monthly base pay for CCCERA-observed 
holidays listed above.   

 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] 
are entitled to the listed paid holidays on a pro rata basis. For example, a part time 
employee whose position hours are 24 per week is entitled to 4.8 hours off work on a 
holiday (24/40 x 8 = 4.8).  

 

When a paid holiday falls on a part-time employee’s normally scheduled work day and the 
part-time paid holiday hours are more than the normally scheduled work hours the 
employee is entitled to receive flexible compensation hours or pay at the rate of one times 
the employees’ base rate of pay for the difference between the employee’s normally 
scheduled work hours and the paid part-time holiday hours. 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

3 | P a g e  
 

When a paid holiday falls on a part-time employee’s normally scheduled work day and the 
part-time paid holiday hours are less than the normally scheduled work hours the employee 
must use non-sick leave accruals for the difference between the employee’s normally 
scheduled work hours and the part-time paid holiday hours. If the employee does not have 
any non-sick leave accrual balances, leave without pay will be authorized. 

 

Flexible Compensation: Flexible Compensation may not be accumulated in excess of 288 
hours. After 288 hours are accrued by an employee, the employee will receive flexible pay at 
the rate of 1.0 times the employee’s base rate of pay. Flexible compensation may be taken 
on those dates and times determined by mutual agreement of the employee and their 
supervisor. 
 

2. Personal Holidays: 
 
Regular employees subject to this Resolution are entitled to accrue up to two hours of 
personal holiday credit each month.  
 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] 
accrue personal holiday hours on a pro rata basis.  
 
No employee may accrue more than forty hours of personal holiday credit at any time.  
Once the employee reaches forty hours of personal holiday, the employee will cease 
accruing such paid time off until he/she uses sufficient such time to reduce his/her bank 
below the forty-hour maximum, after at which time the employee may begin to accrue 
additional hours up to the forty-hour maximum. 
 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any accrued and unused 
personal holiday hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 
 

3. Vacation:  
 

Regular full-time employees subject to this Resolution are entitled to accrue paid vacation as 
follows: 

 
 
 
Length of Service* 

Monthly 
Accrual 
Hours 

Maximum  
Cumulative 
Hours  

Fewer than 11 years 10 240 

11 years 10-2/3 256 

12 years 11-1/3 272 

13 years 12 288 

14 years 12-2/3 304 

15 through 19 years 13-1/3 320 

20 through 24 years 16-2/3 400 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Length of Service* 

Monthly 
Accrual 
Hours 

Maximum  
Cumulative 
Hours  

25 through 29 years 20 480 

30 years and up 23-1/3 560 

* Includes County service if employed at CCCERA before January 1, 2015. 

 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] 
are entitled to the listed paid vacation on a pro rata basis. 

 

Employees may accrue paid vacation time up to a maximum of twice their annual vacation 
accrual.  That is, for a full-time employee with 8 years of service, the employee may accrue 
up to a maximum of 240 hours (120 hours maximum annual accrual x 2 = 240 hours).  Once 
the employee reaches this maximum cumulative hours, she/he will cease accruing paid 
vacation time until he/she uses sufficient vacation to drop below the maximum cumulative 
hours after which time the employee may begin to accrue additional hours up to the 
maximum cumulative hours. 

 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any accrued and unused 
vacation hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 

Vacation Buy Back: 

 

A. With the exception of the Chief Executive Officer, employees may elect payment of 
up to one-third (1/3) of their annual vacation accrual, subject to the following 
conditions:  

(1) the choice can be made only once every thirteen (13) months and there must be 
at least twelve (12) full months between each election;  

(2) payment is based on an hourly rate determined by dividing the employee’s 
current salary by 173.33; and  

(3) the maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is one-
third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 

B. The Chief Executive Officer may elect payment of up to one-third (1/3) of their 
annual vacation accrual, subject to the following conditions: 

(1) the choice can be made only once in each calendar year;  

(2) payment is based on an hourly rate determined by dividing the employee’s 
current salary by 173.33; and  

(3) the maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is one-
third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 
C. The vacation buy back election must be made in the calendar year preceding the year 

of the vacation sale. Hours that an employee elects to cash out are not available for 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

5 | P a g e  
 

the employee to use as vacation.  If a vacation buy back election is not made in the 
preceding calendar year, it will be considered a declination of the vacation sale for 
the year.  

 

NOTE: Where a lump-sum payment is made to employees as a retroactive general salary 
adjustment for a portion of a calendar year that is subsequent to the exercise by an 
employee of the vacation buy-back provision herein, that employee’s vacation buy-back will 
be adjusted to reflect the percentage difference in base pay rates upon which the lump-sum 
payment was computed, provided that the period covered by the lump-sum payment 
includes the effective date of the vacation buy-back. For example: In May a salary increase is 
approved with an effective date of January 1st and the employee completed a vacation buy-
back in March, a lump sum payment for the difference in base pay of the vacation buy-back 
would be calculated.   

 

4. Sick Leave:  

 

Regular full-time employees subject to this Resolution shall earn paid sick leave benefits at 
the rate of eight (8) hours per month.  Regular part-time employees [who are regularly 
scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] are entitled to sick leave benefits on a 
pro rata basis.  

 

Unused sick leave hours accumulate from year to year. When an employee is separated, 
other than through retirement, accumulated sick leave hours shall be cancelled, unless the 
separation results from layoff, in which case the accumulated hours shall be restored if 
reemployed in a regular position within the period of layoff eligibility. At retirement, 
employees are credited, at the rate of one day for each one day earned, with sick leave 
accumulated as of the day of retirement and that sick leave credit counts as additional 
retirement service credit.  

 

For more information on sick leave benefits please refer to the CCCERA Personnel Policies. 

 

5. Sick Leave Incentive Plan:  

 

Employees may be eligible for a payoff of a part of unused sick leave accruals at separation. 
The sick leave incentive plan is an incentive for employees to safeguard sick leave accruals as 
protection against wage loss due to time lost for injury or illness. Payoff must be approved 
by the Chief Executive Officer, and is subject to the following conditions: 

 

➢ The employee must have resigned in good standing 

➢ Payout is not available if the employee is eligible to retire 

➢ The balance of sick leave at resignation must be at least 70% of accruals earned in 
the preceding continuous period of employment excluding any sick leave use 
covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), the California Family Rights Act 
(CFRA) or the California Pregnancy Disability Act (PDL). 

➢ Payout is by the following schedule: 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

6 | P a g e  
 

 

Years of Payment 
Continuous Service 

Payment of 
Unused Sick Leave 

Payable 

3 – 5 years 30% 

5 – 7 years 40% 

7 plus years 50% 

  

➢ No payoff will be made pursuant to this section unless CCCERA certifies that an 
employee requesting as sick leave payoff has terminated membership in, and has 
withdrawn their contributions from CCCERA. 

➢ It is the intent of the Board of Retirement that payments made pursuant to this 
section are in lieu of CCCERA retirement benefits resulting from employment with 
any of the employers in the CCCERA retirement plan.  

 

6. Management Administrative Leave 

 

Management Administrative Leave is authorized and paid time away from the job for any 
personal activities and needs, and that is separate and apart from sick time or vacation 
hours. Unrepresented employees who are exempt, and who are not eligible for overtime, 
are eligible for this benefit. 

 

Use of Management Administrative Leave (“MAL”) may be requested whenever desired by 
the employee, but approval of leave requests are subject to the same department process 
used for consideration of vacation requests. 

 

A. On January 1 of each year, all full-time unrepresented exempt employees in paid status, 
will have their Management Administrative Leave bank replenished such that it 
contains a maximum of ninety-four (94) hours of MAL.  

Cap.  Employees may hold a maximum of ninety-four (94) hours of MAL at any time.  If 
an employee has any unused balance of MAL remaining in their bank as of December 
31, then on January 1, they will be granted the number of hours that will bring their 
bank to the maximum of ninety-four (94) hours.  For example, an employee who uses a 
total 80 hours of MAL in 2023 will have a balance of 14 hours remaining on December 
31, 2023.  On January 1, 2024, that employee will be granted 80 MAL hours, to bring 
their MAL bank to the 94-hour maximum. 

 

B. Regular part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 
hours per week] are eligible for Management Administrative Leave on a prorated basis, 
based upon their position hours. 
Part-time employees are subject to the cap described in Section 6.A, above, on a 
prorated basis. 
 

C. Employees who become eligible for MAL(i.e., they are hired or promoted to a qualifying 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

7 | P a g e  
 

exempt position) are eligible for Management Administrative Leave on the first day of 
the month following their eligibility date on a prorated basis. 

 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any remaining balance of 
Management Administrative Leave hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 

7. Other Unpaid Leaves: 

 

CCCERA provides leaves of absence to eligible employees in a variety of circumstances.  In all 
cases, CCCERA intends to comply with applicable federal and state laws.  For additional 
information on unpaid leaves please refer to the CCCERA Personnel Policies. 

 

• Pregnancy disability leave may be requested by any employee at any time. 

• Workers’ compensation leave is provided to any employee as needed. 

• Leave as a reasonable accommodation of an employee’s disability is provided 
to any employee as needed. 

Request for Leave:  As soon as an employee learns of the need for a leave of absence, the 
employee should submit a request for leave to the Administrative/HR Manager.  Request 
forms are available from Human Resources.  Any leave request must state the purpose of the 
leave being requested.  If approved, the leave must be used for that purpose. 

A. Medical/Family Illness/Child Care Leave (FMLA/CFRA LEAVE)  
 

Eligible employees may request an unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) of up to 18 
workweeks in a rolling 12-month period (measured backwards from the date the leave 
begins) for any of the following reasons: 

• Birth of the employee’s child and to care for the child within the first year of 
birth;  

• The care of an adopted or foster child which the first year of placement with 
the employee; 

• Care for the employee’s child, spouse or domestic partner, or parent with a 
serious health condition;  

• Serious health condition of the employee; 

• A qualifying exigency arising out of an eligible family member’s call to military 
duty; or 

• To care for a covered military service member who is the employee’s eligible 
family member/next-of-kin. 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

8 | P a g e  
 

For purposes of this Resolution, an eligible employee is one who has completed one year of 
continuous employment with CCCERA and worked a minimum of 1,250 hours during the 
preceding 12 months. 

Medical certification is required for leaves necessitated by the serious health condition of the 
employee or of a family member, but an employee or his/her health care provider need not, 
and should not, disclose the employee’s underlying condition. medical history, results of 
tests, or any genetic information.    A “serious health condition” means an illness, injury, 
impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves any of the following: 

• Time or treatment in connection with inpatient care; 

• Period of incapacity of more than three consecutive days that involves 
treatment by a health care provider; or 

• Any period of incapacity or treatment that is permanent or long term. 

Employees will continue to be covered by CCCERA health insurance benefits under pre-leave 
conditions during the entire approved FMLA leave. 

FMLA leave is unpaid, except that employees [may elect to use any accrued vacation, sick, 
personal holiday or management administrative leave time. 

Intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule may be approved with medical certification for 
an employee’s Serious Health Condition, for the employee to care for a child, parent, spouse, 
or domestic partner (under the CFRA only) with a serious health condition. 

Medical certification that the employee is released to return to work is required before the 
employee will be permitted to return. 

If an employee needs to extend his or her leave, he/she must request an extension for 
FMLA/CFRA leave as soon as practicable after he/she has knowledge of the need for 
additional leave time. Recertification by a treating health care provider may be required every 
30 calendar days in connection with an employee’s absence where appropriate. 

B. Pregnancy Disability Leave 
 

Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL) is a leave due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related reasons 
preventing the employee from performing her job functions.  PDL includes leave needed for 
prenatal care and prenatal complications. 

Employees may take up to a maximum of four months of PDL per pregnancy.  Medical 
certification of the need for the leave is required, and the length of PDL will depend on the 
medical necessity for the leave.  Medical certification that the employee is released to return 
to work is required before the employee will be permitted to return. 

Employees will continue to be covered by CCCERA health insurance benefits under pre-leave 
conditions during the entire approved PDL. 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

9 | P a g e  
 

Leave for pregnancy disability is unpaid, except that employees may elect to use any accrued 
vacation, sick, personal holiday or management administrative leave time. 

C.  Military Leave 
 

Federal and state mandated-military leaves of absence are granted without pay to members 
of the United States Uniformed Services, the California National Guard, or the reserves.  To be 
eligible, an employee must submit written verification from the appropriate military 
authority.  Such leaves will be granted in accordance with state and federal law.  

When an employee goes on Military Leave for more than 30 days, any applicable group 
insurance (existing provisions will apply) continues for 90 days following the commencement 
of unpaid Military Leave. Beyond the 90 days, the employee may elect to continue the same 
group health care coverage, including dependent coverage, if applicable, for up to 24 months 
at his/her own expense. 

An employee may elect to use accrued personal holidays, vacation, and/or management 
administrative leave at the beginning of unpaid military service or may retain earned and 
accrued vacation for use upon return from the leave. The employee must provide this 
request/election in writing to Administrative/HR Manager prior to the start of the military 
leave. 

At the conclusion of military service, an employee will be reinstated upon giving notice of 
his/her intent to return to work by either (1) reporting to work or (2) submitting a timely oral 
or written request to CCCERA for reinstatement within 90 days of days after their release 
from active duty or any extended period required by law. The Military Leave will expire upon 
the employee’s failure to request reinstatement or return to work in a timely manner after 
conclusion of service. 

8. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits 

 
Regular full-time and part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum 
of 20 hours per week] and their eligible dependents may be entitled to receive medical and 
dental insurance coverage through CCCERA Plans.  Attached hereto as Attachment B, is the 
monthly premium subsidy for unrepresented employees. 

Effective January 1, 2016, CCCERA shall offer an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 Flexible 
Benefits Plan that offers (i) CalPERS health plan coverages for each eligible employee and the 
employee's eligible family members and (ii) at least one other nontaxable benefit.  CCCERA 
shall make monthly contributions under the plan for each eligible employee and their 
dependents (if applicable) up to the relevant amount set forth in Attachment B.  Such 
contributions shall consist of (i) the Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC) established by 
the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act, and designated by CCCERA as the MEC, 
and (ii) the additional amount of such contributions in excess of the MEC. 
 
Any eligible employee who enrolls in health coverage with a higher total premium than 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

10 | P a g e  
 

CCCERA’s contributions with respect to the eligible employee, as stated in Attachment B, will 
pay the difference via pre-tax payroll deductions under the plan to the extent permitted by 
Internal Revenue Code Section 125. 
 
Dual Coverage: Each employee, eligible dependent and retiree may be covered by only a 
single CCCERA health or dental plan. 

Please refer any questions about medical/dental benefits to Human Resources.   
 
Health and Dental Coverage Upon Retirement 

 
1. Any CCCERA retiree or their eligible dependent who becomes age 65 on or after January 

1, 2009 and who is eligible for Medicare must immediately enroll in Medicare Parts A 

and B. 

 

2. For employees hired by Contra Costa County or CCCERA on or after January 1, 2009 and 

their eligible dependents, upon completion of five (5) years of CCCERA service, an 

eligible employee who retires from CCCERA may retain continuous coverage of a 

CCCERA health and/or dental plan provided that:  

 

i. he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 

within 120 days of separation from CCCERA employment and  

ii. he or she pays the difference between the Public Employees’ Medical and 

Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) minimum contribution and the premium cost of 

the health plan. He or she pays the full premium of the dental plan without any 

CCCERA premium subsidy. 

 

3. For employees hired by Contra Costa County before January 1, 2009 and their eligible 

dependents, upon completion of five (5) years of CCCERA service, an eligible employee 

who retires from CCCERA may retain continuous coverage of a CCCERA health and/or 

dental plan provided that they meet the requirements listed below:  

  

i. he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 

within 120 days of separation from CCCERA employment and  

ii. he or she pays the difference between the monthly premium subsidy 

established by the Board of Retirement for eligible employees and their eligible 

dependents and the premium cost of the health/dental plan.1 

 

1 CCCERA will pay the health/dental plan monthly premium subsidy established by the Board of Retirement for eligible retirees and 

their eligible dependents. 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

11 | P a g e  
 

4. All periods of benefit eligible employment will be included in the five (5) years of 
service calculation for purposes of health and dental coverage upon retirement. 

 

5. Employees who were on an authorized leave of absence without pay prior to retiring 
must have maintained coverage through CCCERA and paid the applicable premiums 
during their authorized leave of absence in order to be eligible for coverage under this 
Section. 

 

6. Employees, who resign and file for a deferred retirement and their eligible 
dependents, may continue in their CCCERA group health and/or dental plan under the 
following conditions and limitations: 

i. Health and dental coverage during the deferred retirement period is totally at 
the expense of the employee, without any CCCERA contributions. 

ii. Life insurance coverage is not included. 
iii. To continue health and dental coverage, the employee must: 

 
a. be qualified for a deferred retirement under the 1937 Retirement Act 

provisions; 
b. be an active member of a CCCERA group health and/or dental plan at 

the time of filing their deferred retirement application and elect to 
continue plan benefits; 

c. be eligible for a monthly allowance from the Retirement System and 
direct receipt of a monthly allowance within one hundred twenty (120) 
days of application for deferred retirement; and 

d. file an election to defer retirement and to continue health benefits 
hereunder with CCCERA within thirty (30) days before separation from 
CCCERA service. 

 
iv. Deferred retirees who elect continued health benefits hereunder and their 

eligible dependents may maintain continuous membership in their CCCERA 
health and/or dental plan group during the period of deferred retirement by 
paying the full premium for health and dental coverage on or before the 10th 
of each month, to CCCERA. When the deferred retirees begin to receive 
retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental 
coverage listed above, as similarly situated retirees who did not defer 
retirement. 

 
v. Deferred retirees may elect retiree health benefits hereunder without 

electing to maintain participation in their CCCERA health and/or dental plan 
during their deferred retirement period. When they begin to receive 
retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental 
coverage as listed above, as similarly situated retirees who did not defer 
retirement. 

 
vi. Employees who elect deferred retirement will not be eligible in any event for 

CCCERA health and/or dental premium subsidies unless the member draws 
a monthly retirement allowance within one hundred twenty days (120) after 
separation from CCCERA employment. 

 
vii. Deferred retirees and their eligible dependents are required to meet the 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

12 | P a g e  
 

same eligibility provisions for retiree health/dental coverage as similarly 
situated retirees who did not defer retirement. 

 
7. For employees who retire and are eligible to receive a medical premium subsidy that 

is greater than the PEMHCA minimum contribution, each month during which such 

retiree medical coverage continues, CCCERA will provide each such retiree with a 

medical expense reimbursement plan (MERP), also known as a health reimbursement 

arrangement (HRA), subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 105, with a monthly 

credit equal to the excess of (i) the relevant medical coverage monthly premium 

subsidy set forth in Attachment B for such eligible retiree and his or her eligible family 

members over (ii) the then current MEC. 

 

9. Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance 

 

CCCERA will provide Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance. 

 

10. State Disability Insurance 

 

Unrepresented employees do not contribute towards State Disability Insurance. 

 

11. Life Insurance  

 

For employees who are enrolled in CCCERA’s program of medical or dental coverage as 
either the primary or the dependent, term life insurance in the amount of ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000) will be provided by CCCERA.  

 

Management employees, with the exception of the Chief Executive Officer will also receive 
fifty-seven thousand dollars ($57,000) in addition to the life insurance provided above. The 
Chief Executive Officer will receive an additional sixty thousand dollars ($60,000) in addition 
to the ten thousand dollars ($10,000) insurance provided above. 

 

In addition to the life insurance benefits provided by CCCERA, employees may subscribe 
voluntarily and at their own expense for supplemental life insurance. Please refer to Human 
Resources for additional information. 

 

12. Workers Compensation Insurance 
 

CCCERA provides workers' compensation benefits to employees who sustain a work-related 
injury or illness, and claims are processed through an adjusting agent/insurance carrier as 
designated by CCCERA, which administers workers' compensation claims and provides benefits 
and services to injured employees.  A worker's compensation injury is any injury or illness that 
arises out of and in the course of employment (AOE/COE) (Labor Code section 3600). 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

13 | P a g e  
 

 

1. Waiting Period: There is a three (3) calendar day waiting period before workers’ 
compensation benefits commence. If the injured worker loses any time on the date of 
injury, that day counts as day one (1) of the waiting period. If the injured worker does 
not lose time on the date of the injury, the waiting period is the first three (3) days 
following the date of the injury. The time the employee is scheduled to work during this 
waiting period will be charged to the employee’s sick leave and/or vacation accruals. In 
order to qualify for workers’ compensation the employee must be under the care of a 
physician. Temporary compensation is payable on the first three (3) days of disability 
when the injury necessitates hospitalization, or when the disability exceeds fourteen (14) 
days. 

 

2. Continuing Pay: Permanent employees shall continue to receive the appropriate percent 
as per Labor Code section 4650 et. seq. of their regular monthly salary during any period 
of compensable temporary disability not to exceed one year. Payment of continuing pay 
and/or temporary disability compensation is made in accordance with Part 2, Article 3 of 
the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California. "Compensable temporary disability 
absence" for the purpose of this Section, is any absence due to work connected disability 
which qualifies for temporary disability compensation as set forth in Part 2, Article 3 of 
the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California. 

 

When any disability becomes medically permanent and stationary and/or reaches 
maximum medical improvement, the salary provided in this Section shall terminate. No 
charge shall be made against sick leave or vacation for these payments. Sick leave and 
vacation rights shall not accrue for those periods during which continuing pay is 
received.  

 

Employees shall be entitled to a maximum of one (1) year of continuing pay benefits for 
any one injury or illness.  

 

Continuing pay begins at the same time that temporary workers’ compensation benefits 
commence and continues until either the member is declared medically 
permanent/stationary, or until one (1) year of continuing pay, whichever comes first, 
provided the employee remains in an active employed status. Continuing pay is 
automatically terminated on the date an employee is separated from CCCERA by 
resignation, retirement, layoff, or the employee is no longer employed by CCCERA. In 
these instances, employees will be paid workers’ compensation benefits as prescribed by 
workers’ compensation laws. All continuing pay must be cleared through CCCERA. 

 

3. Physician Visits: Whenever an employee who has been injured on the job and has 
returned to work is required by an attending physician to leave work for treatment 
during working hours, the employee is allowed time off, up to three (3) hours for such 
treatment, without loss of pay or benefits. Said visits are to be scheduled contiguous to 
either the beginning or end of the scheduled workday whenever possible. This provision 
applies only to injuries/illnesses that have been accepted by CCCERA as work related. 

 

13. Health Care Spending Account 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

14 | P a g e  
 

 

After six (6) months of regular employment, full time and part time (20/40 or greater) 
employees may elect to participate in a Health Care Spending Account (HCSA) Program 
designated to qualify for tax savings under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but 
such savings are not guaranteed. The HCSA Program allows employees to set aside a 
predetermined amount of money from their pay, before taxes, for health care expenses not 
reimbursed by any other health benefit plans. HCSA dollars may be expended on any eligible 
medical expenses allowed by Internal Revenue Code Section 125. Any unused balance over 
five hundred dollars ($500) is forfeited and cannot be recovered by the employee. Please 
refer to Human Resources for more information on the HCSA Program. 

 

14. Dependent Care Assistance Program 

 

Full time and part time (20/40 or greater) employees may elect to participate in a 
Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) designed to qualify for tax savings under 
Section 129 of the Internal Revenue Code, but such savings are not guaranteed. The 
program allows employees to set aside up to five thousand ($5,000) of annual salary (before 
taxes) per calendar year to pay for eligible dependent care (child and elder care) expenses. 
According to IRS regulations, any unused balance is forfeited and may not be recovered by 
the employee. Please refer to Human Resources for more information on DCAP. 

 

15. Premium Conversion Plan 

 

CCCERA offers the Premium Conversion Plan (PCP) designed to qualify for tax savings under 
Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but tax savings are not guaranteed. The program 
allows employees to use pre-tax salary to pay health and dental premiums. Please refer to 
Human Resources for more information on the PCP. 

 

16. Vision Insurance 

 
CCCERA will pay 100% of the employee only premium for EyeMed Option 2 vision coverage 
and up to two hours of CCCERA paid time for exam and to obtain glasses. Employees may 
obtain spouse and dependent coverage at their own cost.  

 

17. Retirement: 

 
CCCERA Membership: 

Contributions: Employees are responsible for the payment of one hundred percent of 
the employees’ basic retirement benefit contributions determined annually by the 
Board. Employees are also responsible for the payment of the employee’s contributions 
to the retirement cost-of-living program as determined annually by the Board. CCCERA is 
responsible for payment of one hundred percent of the employer’s retirement 
contributions as determined annually by the Board. 

A. Employees who are not classified as new members under PEPRA will be enrolled in 
Retirement Tier 1 enhanced. For more information on retirement tiers please refer to 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

15 | P a g e  
 

the CCCERA member handbooks. 

B. Employees who are classified as new members under PEPRA will be enrolled in 
Retirement IV (3% COLA). For more information on retirement tiers please refer to the 
CCCERA member handbooks. 

C. CCCERA will implement Section 414(h) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code which allows 
CCCERA to reduce the gross monthly pay of employees by an amount equal to the 
employee’s total contribution to the CCCERA Retirement Plan before Federal and State 
income taxes are withheld, and forward that amount to the CCCERA Retirement Plan. 
This program of deferred retirement contribution will be universal and non-voluntary as 
required by statute. 

 
Deferred Compensation: 

A. CCCERA will contribute eighty-five dollars ($85) per month to each employee who 
participates in CCCERA’s Deferred Compensation Plan. To be eligible for this Deferred 
Compensation Incentive, the employee must contribute to the deferred compensation 
plan as indicated below: 

 

Employees with Current 
Monthly Salary of: 

Qualifying Base 
Contribution Amount 

Monthly Contribution 
Required to Maintain 
Incentive Program Eligibility 

$2,500 and below $250 $50 

$2,501 – 3,334 $500 $50 

$3,335 – 4,167 $750 $50 

$4,168 – 5,000 $1,000 $50 

$5,001 – 5,834 $1,500 $100 

$5,835 – 6,667 $2,000 $100 

$6,668 and above $2,500 $100 

 

Employees who discontinue contributions or who contribute less than the required 
amount per month for a period of one (1) month or more will no longer be eligible for the 
eighty-five dollars ($85) Deferred Compensation Incentive. To reestablish eligibility, 
employees must again make a Base Contribution Amounts as set forth above based on 
current monthly salary. Employees with a break in deferred compensation contributions 
either because of an approved medical leave or an approved financial hardship 
withdrawal will not be required to reestablish eligibility. Further, employees who lose 
eligibility due to displacement by layoff, but maintain contributions at the required level 
and are later employed in an eligible position, will not be required to reestablish 
eligibility. 

 

B. Regular employees hired on and after January 1, 2009 will receive one hundred and fifty 
dollars ($150) per month to an employee’s account in the Contra Costa County Deferred 
Compensation Plan or other tax-qualified savings program designated by CCCERA, for 
employees who meet all of the following conditions: 

1. The employee must be hired by CCCERA on or after January 1, 2009. 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

16 | P a g e  
 

2. The employee is not eligible for a monthly premium subsidy for health and/or dental 
upon retirement as set forth in Section 8. 

3. The employee must be appointed to a regular position. The position may be either   full 
time or part time (designated at a minimum of 20 hours per week). 

4. The employee must have been employed by CCCERA or Contra Costa County for at 
least 90 calendar days. 

5. The employee must contribute a minimum of twenty-five dollars ($25) per month to 
the Contra Costa County Deferred Compensation Plan, or other tax-qualified savings 
program designated by CCCERA. 

6. The employee must complete and sign the required enrollment form(s) for his/her 
deferred compensation account and submit those forms to Human Resources. 

7. The employee may not exceed the annual maximum contribution amount allowable by 
the United States Internal Revenue Code. 

8. Employees are eligible to apply for loans from the Contra Costa County Deferred 
Compensation Plan loan program. For more information on the loan program refer to 
Human Resources. 

 

18. General Training 

 
CCCERA periodically provides training to employees on its harassment prevention and equal 
opportunity/discrimination policies.  The purpose of these training sessions is to inform and 
remind employees of CCCERA’s policies on these matters.  These training sessions are 
mandatory. 

Employees also receive safety training as part of CCCERA’s Injury and Illness Prevention 
program. 

19. Other Job-Related Training  

 
Employees may request to attend training sessions on topics that are directly related to the 
employee’s current job and that are likely to improve the employee’s job knowledge and 
skills.  Requests to attend training must be submitted to the employee’s department 
manager.  It is within the sole discretion of CCCERA whether or not to grant a training 
request. 

 

20. Professional Development Reimbursement 
 

To encourage personal and professional growth which is beneficial to both CCCERA and the 
employee, CCCERA reimburses for certain expenses incurred by employees which are related 
to an employee’s current work assignment. 

Expenses that may be eligible for reimbursement include certification programs and courses 
offered through accredited colleges, universities and technical schools. 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

17 | P a g e  
 

Guidelines:  Prior to registering for a course, the employee must provide appropriate 
information to Human Resources to begin the approval process. 

If granted, reimbursement may be used to defray actual costs of tuition, registration, testing 
materials, testing fees and books only and is limited to $2,000 per year.   

Course attendance, study, class assignments and exams must be accomplished outside of the 
employee’s regular working hours. 

Reimbursement:  Reimbursement will only be provided for course work in which the 
employee achieves a grade of C or better. Reimbursement will be provided only to employees 
who are employed by CCCERA at the time CCCERA receives evidence of satisfactory 
completion of the course or certification exam. 

If the employee does not successfully complete the course or certification exam, no 
reimbursement will be provided. 

Exceptions: For classifications which require a certification or technical license, CCCERA will 
reimburse the entire cost of certification fees and membership dues without reducing the 
maximum annual Professional Development Reimbursement amount.  

21. Salary 

 
Attached hereto as Attachment A, is the salary schedule for all classifications of 
unrepresented employees. 

22. Overtime 

 
Unrepresented employees who are exempt from the payment of overtime are not entitled to 
receive overtime pay, flexible compensatory, or overtime compensatory time. Unrepresented 
employees who are non-exempt from the payment of overtime will receive overtime for 
hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the workweek and paid at a rate of time and one-half 
their hourly rate of pay. 

23. Differential Pay 

 
A. Longevity 
 
Ten Years of Service: 

Employees who have completed ten (10) years of service for CCCERA* are eligible to receive a 
two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the first day of the month 
following the month in which the employee qualifies for the ten (10) year service award.  

Fifteen Years of Service: 



BOR Reso. No. 2023-2 

18 | P a g e  
 

Employees who have completed fifteen (15) years of service for CCCERA* are eligible to 
receive an additional two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the 
first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the fifteen 
(15) year service award. 

Twenty Years of Service: 

Employees in the General Counsel classification who have completed twenty (20) years of 
service for CCCERA* will receive an additional two percent (2%) longevity differential effective 
on the first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the 
twenty (20) year service award. 

*For employees hired prior to January 1, 2019 upon completion of required years of service 
for Contra Costa County and/or CCCERA will qualify. 

B. Certificate Differentials 
 
NOTE: No employee may receive more than one certificate differential at one time, 
regardless of the number of certificates held by that employee. 
 

➢ Accounting Certificate Differential 

Incumbents of unrepresented professional accounting, auditing or fiscal officer positions 
who possess one of the following active certifications will receive a differential of five 
percent (5%) of base monthly salary:  

 

(1) a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) license issued by the State of California, 
Department of Consumer Affairs, Board of Accountancy;  

(2) a Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) certification issued by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors;  

(3) a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) certification issued by the Institute of 
Management Accountants; or  

(4) a Certified Government Financial Manager (CGFM) certification issued by the 
Association of Government Accountants. 

 
➢ Associate of the Society of Actuaries (ASA) 

Employees who possess an active ASA certification will receive a differential of five percent 
(5%) of base monthly salary. Verification of eligibility for any such differential must be 
provided to Human Resources.  

 
 



 

 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: May 3, 2023 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:  Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to renew a maintenance and 
support agreement with CPAS Systems, Inc.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
Since 2009, CCCERA has had a maintenance and system software support services agreement 
with CPAS Systems, Inc. for its pension administration system. It is typically renewed on an 
annual basis. These services include legislative compliance updates, maintenance updates, and 
overall system support services. The annual renewal amounts are $38,628.40 for maintenance 
and $25,320.00 for system support services. This is an anticipated $73K reduction in system 
support services due to the implementation of the new pension administration system in the 
coming year. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to renew a maintenance and support 
agreement with CPAS Systems, Inc.   
 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/03/2023Agenda Item#9


	agenda 05.03.23
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 5a
	Item 5b

	Item 6
	Item 6a
	Item 6b

	Item 7
	Item 8
	Memo to Board on Management Admin Leave 05032023 - final
	Resolution 2023 - REDLINE
	Resolution 2023 - CLEAN

	Item 9



